CCASE:

MSHA V. ANDERSON EQUI PMENT
DDATE:

19920128

TTEXT:



~222

SECRETARY OF LABOR, : Cl VIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH :
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , : Docket No. WEVA 90-283
Petitioner : A. C. No. 46-01452-03501
V. :

Arkwright No. | Mne
ANDERSON EQUI PMENT COMPANY,
Respondent

DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Janes V. Blair, Esqg., U S. Departnent of Labor
O fice of the Solicitor, Arlington, Virginia, for
the Petitioner;

Hayes C. Stover, Esq., Kirkpatrick & Lockhart,
Pi ttsburgh, Pennsylvania, for the Respondent.

Before: Judge Maurer

This case is before me upon the petition for civil penalty
filed by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to section 105(d) of the
Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C. 0O 801
et seq., the "Act," charging the Anderson Equi prment Conpany
(Anderson) with a violation of the mandatory standard found at
30 C.F.R [ 48.26(a) and proposing a civil penalty of $60 for
that violation. The general issue before me is whether Anderson
violated the cited standard and, if so, the appropriate civi
penalty to be assessed in accordance with section 110(i) of the
Act .

Pursuant to notice, a hearing on the nerits was held in this
matter on August 20, 1991, in Mrgantown, West Virginia. Post-
hearing briefs were filed by the parties on October 18, 1991. |
have considered the entire record of proceedi ngs and the
contentions of the parties in naking the foll ow ng decision.

STl PULATI ONS

The parties have agreed to the follow ng stipulations, which
| accept:

I. Anderson is subject to the provisions of the Act and the
under si gned admi nistrative |aw judge has jurisdiction over these
proceedi ngs.
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2. Anderson is a small-sized operator under the Act and has
commtted no violations of the Act or the regul ations promul gated
t hereunder in the 2 years prior to the inspection out of which
this case arose.

3. At the time of the October 12, 1989 inspection we are
concerned with herein, M. Tinmothy Drake, an Anderson enpl oyee,
had not been provided with conprehensive training as that termis
defined in 30 CF.R [0 48.26, and allegedly in violation of that
mandat ory standard

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Section 104(g)(1) Wthdrawal Order No. 3309624 was issued on
Cctober 12, 1989, and states as foll ows:

Tim W Drake observed perform ng nechanic duties
on a 530 end | oader in the yard at the preparation
pl ant has not received the requisite safety training as
stipulated in Section 115 of the Act. M. Drake has
been determned to be a newmy enpl oyed experi enced
m ner who has not received the required training under
a MSHA approved plan. In the absence of such training
Ti m Drake, nechanic, is declared to be a hazard to
hi msel f and others and is to be i mediately w thdrawn
fromthe mne until he has received the required
training. [A] Citation No. 3309625 for violation of
30 CF.R 48.26(a) has been issued in conjunction with
this Order.

Citation No. 3309625, issued in conjunction with the above
order and pursuant to section 104(a) of the Act, alleges a
violation of the regulatory standard at 30 C.F. R 0O 48.26(a) and
charges as foll ows:

Tim W Drake was observed performni ng nechanic
duties on a 530 end |oader in the yard area at the
preparation plant. A discussion with M. Drake and
Edward Wi ght, safety director for Anderson Equip. Co.
reveal ed that M. Drake was not trained under a MSHA
approved plan and was not provided with a Form 5000-23
proof of training.

A 104(g) (1) Order No. 3309624 has been issued in
conjunction with this citation

The above-referenced order was not contested by the
respondent and is not the subject of the instant civil penalty
proceeding. It is nentioned here for the sake of conpl eteness
only. The petitioner is seeking a civil penalty assessnent for
the alleged violation noted in the section 104(a) citation and
not the section 104(g)(1) Order.
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FI NDI NGS OF FACT

1. On Cctober 12, 1989, Timthy Drake was enpl oyed by the
Ander son Equi pment Conpany. That day, he was working on a front-
end | oader at the Arkwight Tipple of the Consolidation Coa
Conmpany, which is located at Granville, West Virginia.

2. MSHA Inspector George H Phillips also conducted an
i nspection at the Consolidation Coal Conpany facility at
Granville, West Virginia on Cctober 12, 1989.

3. Inspector Phillips approached M. Drake and questioned
hi m concerning his training. Drake informed himthat the coa
conpany had provided hazard trai ning and his conpany (Anderson)
had provided himwith other safety-related training, but the
i nspector deternmined that this "other" training was not
conprehensi ve trai ning pursuant to an MSHA- approved training
pl an, and he did not have the Form 5000-23 as proof of training.

4. Anderson concedes that Drake had not received
conprehensi ve traini ng under an MSHA-approved plan pursuant to
30 CF.R [ 48.26(a) as of Cctober 12, 1989, nor was he in
possessi on of a Form 5000- 23.

5. CGovernment Exhibit No. 1 denmobnstrates to ny satisfaction
that M. Drake frequently worked at various mne sites, sonetines
on an extended basis, including the Consolidation Coal Conpany
facilities at Ganville, West Virginia, be it the Arkwight
Ti ppl e or the Konfort Tipple. For exanmple, from March 9, 1989
t hrough March 13, 1989, M. Drake worked at the Allied M ning
facility at Pisgah, West Virginia, for 6 consecutive work days.
And from July 27, 1989 through August 3, 1989, he worked at the
Consol idation Coal Conpany facility at Granville, West Virginia,
for 6 consecutive work days. During a 14 week period from
July 23, 1989 through October 28, 1989, M. Drake worked at the
Consol idation Coal Conpany facility at Granville, West Virginia,
at least 1 day a week for 12 of those weeks. And in August 1989
al one, he worked at Consol's Granville facility on 12 separate
days.

6. M. Drake credibly testified that his work place was
usual ly physically located in a segregated repair area, away from
the m ning operations thenselves, but he conceded that was not
al ways possi bl e.

7. | also accept as credible the inspector's opinion based
on 19 1/2 years experience as a coal mine safety inspector that
M. Drake was regularly and frequently exposed to mi ne hazards
generally in the course of his enploynent as a mai ntenance worker
for Anderson at the various mne sites enunmerated in Governnment
Exhi bit No. 1.
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DI SCUSSI ON W TH FURTHER FI NDI NGS

Respondent denies that training under 30 C.F. R [ 48. 26(a)
was required in M. Drake's case and states that training under
30 CF.R [O48.31(a) was supplied instead and was the appropriate
training in their opinion.

The question is whether Drake is a "miner" as defined in
30 C.F.R [48.22(a)(1) or (a)(2).

If he is an "(a)(1l) miner,” he is required to have
conprehensive training under section 48.26. |If he is an
"(a)(2) mner," he is required to have only hazard traini ng under
section 48.31, which the Secretary concedes he had received.

Put anot her way, the question is was Drake a "nmintenance or
service worker contracted by the operator to work at the mine for
frequent or extended periods" (an (a)(1l) mner) or was he
excluded from (a) (1) coverage because he was "(iii) any person
covered under paragraph (a)(2) of this section,” i.e., an
"occasional short-term mai ntenance or service worker contracted
by the operator.”

Program Policy Letter No. P89-111-13 entitled |Independent
Contractor Training Policy; 30 C.F.R Part 48 (Respondent's
Exhi bit No. 3) states that:

I ndependent contractors regularly exposed to mne
hazards, or who are mai ntenance or service workers
contracted by the operator to work at the mne for
frequent or extended periods, must receive
conprehensive training. "Regularly exposed" neans
either frequent exposure, that is exposure to hazards
at the mine on a frequent rather than consecutive day
basis (a pattern of recurring exposure) or extended
exposure of 5 consecutive workdays, or both.

Al so, the MSHA Program Policy Manual, Volune 111, Part 48
(Respondent's Exhibit No. 2) at page 25 states:

If the job assignnent of a service or naintenance
wor ker exceeds 5 consecutive working days at a
particular mne, and they are exposed to m ning
hazar ds, conprehensive training nust be given

Page 13-14 of that sanme manual further recites:

If the individual . . . is a maintenance or
servi ce worker enployed or contracted by the operator
for frequent periods or on a regular basis and is
exposed to nmine hazards, the worker nust be given
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conprehensive training. Regular exposure is a
recogni zabl e pattern of exposure on a recurring basis.
Exposure to hazards for nore than 5 consecutive days is
frequent exposure.

| find and conclude that M. Drake was as of the date of the
citation at bar, October 12, 1989, a mai ntenance worker enpl oyed
by Anderson, and contracted to work at various mne sites on both
a frequent and extended basis, where he was regularly exposed to
t he hazards generally associated with both nmning and the repair
of heavy equi pment. As such, he was required to have
conprehensive training, in accordance with 30 C F.R [ 48.26(a).
He did not, and therefore, a violation of the cited standard
existed at that time, as charged.

The Secretary also urges that | find this violation to be
"significant and substantial" (S&S). However, the inspector
hinsel f stated that he did not doubt that the man was trained,
but it just was not training approved by MSHA or pursuant to an
MSHA- approved plan (Tr. 22). Under the circunstances, | find the
record to be totally lacking in support for an "S&S" finding.
Accordingly, Citation No. 3309625 will be affirmed as a "non- S&S"
citation.

Havi ng considered all the criteria for a civil penalty in
section 110(i) of the Act, |I find that a penalty of $50 is
appropriate for the violation found herein.

ORDER

WHEREFORE, | T | S ORDERED t hat:

. Citation No. 3309625 is nodified to delete the
"significant and substantial" finding and as so nodified,

af firnmed.

2. Respondent shall pay the civil penalty of $50 within
30 days of this decision

Roy J. Maurer
Adm ni strative Law Judge

Di stribution:

James V. Blair, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnent of
Labor, 4015 W/ son Boul evard, Arlington, VA 22203 (Certified
Mai 1)

Hayes C. Stover, Esq., Kirkpatrick & Lockhart, 1500 Qi ver
Bui | di ng, Pittsburgh, PA 15222 (Certified Mil)
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